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IN TAR CHOGRAW AND. CHICTASAY. SITIZEWSHIR COURY S STrrrrme

AT SOUTH MeALRSTHR, INDIAN TERRITORY.

Sarah Jene Reynolds, et al, eevverseviincenniiacnrones Petitioneras,

L ]

P

Choetaw and Chicltasaw Nations, ...............c...... Delendants.

Your peticvioners, Saral Jane Reynolds, Robhert Potts, Hary 1.

y

Reynolds, charles 3. Reynolds, Anna Laura Reynolds, and 5. D. Rey-
nolds, s:ote that under the Aet of June the I0th, 1896, theyv. duiy

filed their apvlication for citizenship bhefore the Commaission to the

3

Bive Civilized Tribcs, tha? S epwiicntion was heard and acted upon
by salid Commission, and thnt your apulicant, Ssreh Jane Reynolds,

was admisted by said Comglission-&s8 a cltizen o the Chlclasaw Tribe

i
e i

of Indians by invermarriasge, and Robert Potis, her son, by John Potts,

8 Chieckagaw Indian by blood, was zlso adinitted, and the other nedi-

tioners herein rejectedy that thercafter ssid case was anpealed to

the United State for *he Southern Distriet of the Indian Yer-

i
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—
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ritory, of whiech anveal your petitioners never hod sy notice, and
never knew <hat salid case was pending in the Unived Stetes court,
‘
but had accepted said judgment of the Comnission in IHS?G, and did
not lknow that sawe had been apvealed from, until they rbhneared belore
said Comaission several yvears later, for enrolliment.
Your netitioner, Sarah Jane Revnolds, says thet she was loge
aiL married to John T. Pobts according to the laws of the Chickasaw
Notion, at TJolbert, Indian Territory, in July,I880; that there was

bora to her and John Potts one child, Robert Potts.

Tha~ the other petitioners herein are children o7 vour netitioner,



- B

Sarah - Jane Reynolis, hori s ks S her second husband,
’“\

Reynolds,
Your vetitioners say thpt the judgument of the United ttnter

court, denying citizenship to Sarah Jane Revnoids and Robert Potts

was erronious and without any knowledge o them; and thet sald judge

Pragts

ment is now of no binding force ~nd effect mrainst your vetitioners;

that said casge is styvled uvnn the docket of the United Btates court

for the Southern Nistriet of the Indisn Territory, at Ardmmre, Sarah

Jane Reynolds et a!, vs. the Chickasaw dution, No. 47,
WHHXRER®ORE Your petitioners, Sarah Jene Reynolds, Robert

Potts, Mary K. Reynolds, Charles 8. Reynolds, Anns Laura Reynolds and

S. D. Reynolds, -prayv shat the clerk of this eturt moke an order,

e ——,

e ;
diredting the CLerlF nfshe lnited Otates court for the Southern Di-

trict of the Indian Tereitorvieat Apdmerg, Lo transfer and certirly al
vavers, records SHT proceedings in said case do. 4%, Serah Jane
Reynolds, et al, against the ﬂhdckasaw Nation, to this court, and
that they have » trisl of said case as it should have been tried
originally, and that the Choetrw ani Chiclrasaw Wations be swaoned
to answer hurmln and for all other prover relied vo which they nay

be entlitled.

Lrnpan i <

Attorievs Tor Pebitionsers.

Sarah Jane Reynol s, heing duly sworn, on oath says that the
facts set forth in the above and foregoing vetition are true and

eorreet.

o

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of March, X908,

o s

dotary Public.



IN THE CHOCTAW AWD CH CKASAW CITIZEWSHIP COURT,
SITTING AT TISHOMINGO, JUNE TERM, 19 04,

Sargh J, Reynolds, et X al,
v8, No, 105,
Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations,
Thompson & Brown, attorneys for plaintiffs,
Mansf ield, McWurray & Comish, for Defendants .

Present and presiding the Honorables Spencer B, Adams,
Chief Jwige ard Walter I, Weaver and Henry S, Toote,
Assoc iate Judges,

JUNE 23, 1904, This day this cause coming on to
be heard, both plaintiffs, and defend mfits being represented
by counsel, and both having amounced ready for trial,
the following proceedings were had, to-wit:

¥r, Brown:

In thajh case, the uppnmint Sareh Jane Reynolds,
end her son Robert Potis, expect to show the following
state of facts, The applicant's Sarah Jane Rsxmixx
Reynold's maiden name was Sarah Jane Lee, and she was
married to John 7, Potts, commonly known as John Taylor
Potts, a member of the Chickasaw tribe of Indians by blood,,
in July 1880, near Colbert, Chickasaw Nation, Indian Terri-
tory, the applicant Sarsh Jane Repmolds, = being a white
woman end citizen of the United States, such marriage was
in compliance with the Chickasaw lawm, That after they
were married they lived together for & pericd of five weeks,

during which time the conduct of the said John T, Potts
became 0 bad that it was impossible Tfor the applie-

cant, Sarsh Jane Remmkxx Reynolds to l¥Sewith him; that
he had repeatedly threatened to kill her, and fired many

shots around the house, It became necessary for her



to leave him in order to protect herse}f, That she
went away from her husbad s&nd has since mkﬁded in the
Chickasaw Wat ion, Some time after she left the said
John T, Potts, sbout seven months thereafter, there was
born unto her a child named Robert Potts, who is the
son of John T, Potts, and the spplicant Sarsh Jane Rey-
nolds,
JUDGE. ADAMS:
. tnly two applicants,
¥r, Brown:
Yes szir,
SARAH JANE REYNOLDS, being called as a witness
in her own behelf, after being first duly sworn, testi
fied as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION,
¥Mr, Brown:
Q.==%hat is your neme?
A,~~Sarah Jane Reynolds,
Q.~-What 1s your post offi ce address?
A,~=pdelia, Chickasaw Nation,
Q.==0ne of the spplicants in this case?
A,~~Yes sir,
Q.~+~Th&t was your ma ‘den name?
A.,--8alle Jane Lee,
Q.==To whom were you first married?
A.==-John T, Potts,
Q.==Who was John Taylor Pobts,”
A.==in Indisn,
Q.==rrember of wheat tribe of Indisns ®
A.==Chickasaw,
Qe==Where were you married?

A.~=Colbert gtation,




e

Qe==Ch ickasaw wation, Indian Territory?
As==Ves sir,
Qe.~~What age ware you at the time of your marriage?
As==1 wae eighteen,
Qe==Did your husbad procure & license from the Chickasaw
authoritiesn®
Ay==Ves sir,
Qe~Were you married in ace rdance with the Chickasaw Taws?
As»=Yes sir,
¥r, Brown:
The applicants first offer in etidence a certified copy
of the original license uniting John T, Potts and
Sarah J, Rxaakidwmooo: Lee in matrimony, dated on the 14th
day of Auguet, 1880, and ask that the said certified
eopy be marked Wxhibit A, "HMarked Exhibit Av,

The aprlicent now desires to introdwe the marrisge
certificate of W, P, Murray, County snd probate Judge of
Panola County, Chb kasaw Wation, dated the 23rd day of
July 1880, certifying that the people mentioned in tha

license were united in marriage, will ask that the :
same be marked Bxhibit Be, Marked Bxhibit B,

Qe==Af ter you were mar-ied, how long did you live with him,
your husband, John Taylow Potts, or John 7, Potts?

A,~=Five weeks,

Q.--Where were you living then?

A~~Two miles sast of Colbert,

Qe=~Did you seperate from him?

Re==Yes eir,

Qe=+State how you happened to seperate from him, and the
reagon why you did sov

Ay==Just got 8o that I couldon't live with him with any satis-
faction,




Q.,~-what did he do?
A.~~Reared around all the time, mnd sbused me because I wante
ed my mother to live with we, and she had no home to go

to, Threatened to kill me if I didn't dispose of her,
end he got to shooting and I got afreid of nim and had to
leave,

Q.,==Did your husband have & brother?

A,~=Yes sir,

Qe=~What was his nmme?

A,~~Joseph Potis, i3 e

Qe==1 will ask you why wvou left wvour huab,émd?‘

A,~=1 left him and went off on asccount o his sbuse, I
coulden't remsain there,

Qu==Who went away with you, who carried you away?

As~=¥y mother,

Qe==anybody else®

A==y youngest brother,

Q.==Wave you sinceresided in the Chickasaw Nation®

Ae==T went to Texas and staid there & short vhile temporarily

snd cane back to the Territory and remained here *’.‘W :

éinea.

Qe==Wilh whom did vou live in the Chickasaw Nation?

Ay==With my bbother,

Qe~~Where did he live?

Ay==Oukland,

Q,.*-\-mz ickasaw Wat ion?

A,~=Yes air,

Qe~~Has your home all the time been in the Choctaw and
chi,&Maw Wet lons?

Ay~~Yes sir, lived parily in both,

Qe=~Did you or ¥r, Potts cbtain a divorce?

A,~-He did

0.~ Did vou sfterwards re~marry?



Ay==~Vas sipr, ‘

Qe=~Where wereyou living at the time you were re-
married?

Ae==DOWN here at Oaklard,

Qe==were in the Chickasaw ¥at ion?

Asy>=Yes sir,

Ge="Marry a white men or an Indian?

Ao "Whnite men,

Q.=~How long after you left your husba dy John T, Potts,
that your son, Robert Potis, wes soxxckms bnm’?

Ay,==About eight months,

Q.~~Whose son is the applicant Robert Pa%n

A.~=J0hn Taylor Potts, |

Q.--Has your son resdded in the Choctaw m«a mzmkmw Yationa

Ae==Ves sir,

Qe=~3t11l1l resides here?

As~=Yes sir, in the Chooctaw Wation,

Qe=~yarried or single? .-

A.~=8ingle, |

Qe=~Who is he livine withe

As==Living with me, ‘

Qe ~~Have you ever abandoned or wuit ala&uing u z*ight a8
Xndzm?

Ay=~¥o gir,

\

Q.~~since your first married?
Ae=-No sir, still here , this is mv home,
Qe==D0 you claim this as your hone sin ee ynu wére Tirast
ma rried? " ,
As~=Yes sir,
CROSS~TXAM INATION,

¥r, Cornish:



Qe==YOUu &r& & white womn?

Ay~=Yes 8ir,

Qe==Your present husbeand is a white men?

As==Yen sir,

Qe=~Your choldren, ¥ary ®, Charles D, and 8, D, are chidren

by your present husband? :

Ay,~=Yen sir,

Qe~=No contention that either you or your husbmd or your
children by vour present husband are possessed of eny
Indian blood?

Ay»~No sir,

Qe==Your son Robert Potts, is & som of your first husband?

A,»=Yes plr,

Qe==After the seperation with Potts, did you have any telk
shout living together with im again®

A.~~No sir,

Q. Ever see him after that time?

A,~~No sir,

Qe==Hever spoke to him =ince that time?

A,~-Yes sir, |
Qe==1Is he the man they call Taylor Potts, t@m lives
about Colbert?

Ay==Ves sir,

Q.=~Been County Judge?
Ay=~Yes sir,
Qe=~County Jwige now?
A,»~Yes sir, L4
Qe=+~How long after the seperation was it that} you remarried?
Ay==Five years, P

Qe~~He acplied for a divorce®

Ay==Yes sir,

Q.="Vou a tend the trial?

A.=-Wasen't ever notif led,



Q.==You don*t know what the testikony

was before the Chickasaw Count®

A,~=Yo sir,

Qe==tho else besides you and your husbs fd know of the facts
of the seperation?

As==¥is Drother Joe Potts,

Qe=~te is living?

As=~Yen sir,

Qe="Tived right there snd knew about the matter?

A,~=ves sir,

Qe~=7he else besides the members of the family?

A.,~-Wasen't snyone particular, There was two young men that
was hired there,

Qe=="Who were vou mearest neigh ors?

As==Didn't Bave eny nearest neighbors, only Joe Potts his
brothers, It was very thinly settled in that country trem

davs, :
Qe=~Have you ever had any telk with John T, Potis asbout
thie being heis =on, or teking care of hin?

Ay==e sir,

Qe=~Hae you ever wpplied to the Chickezsw tribal suthori~
ties for hie nams to be plsced upen the roll?

A,~=Yes sir, mede spplication,

Qe=~What did they do shbout it, did they put his name upon
the roll? ‘ 

A1 think so, .

Qe==Did he draw the Leased District money in ﬁinetrmma?

Ay==Y0o 8ir, never drew anything. l“

Q.~~How long af'ter the sme ration with John T, Potts,
was it , did he remarry®

A.«n”ﬁma sir, he married long befors I did,

¥r. Brown:



Q.=~vou made application to the Five givilied Tribes,
in ninety-six®
Ae==~Yes sir,
Qo= What did they, do did they enrcll you or not?
A,==Yos sir,
Qe*~Who else did they emroll, besides you?
Ay=~Just me and my son Robert,
Qe=~Chickasaw Wation appesled from thet judgment?
Ay==T declare, I don't know,
Qe==ad no notice of ite
As==¥Wo sir,
Qe=~Will ask you if Joe Potlts, who iz & brother of your
brother-inlew, is a brother of your former husba 4%
A,~=ves sir,
Qe=+Will ask you if you had him subpoensed?
A.*~Yep sir,
Qe=~Heard from himrecently®
A~~Yes sir,
Qe~-Had a letter from him?
A,~~EE Yes sir, have the letter in my pocket,
¥r, Cornish:
Q.=-Hadyou been married prior to your marrisge to Potis?
A.~~¥No sir,
Q.~~Never been married bef re you married Potis?
A.~~Wo sir,
0,~~He been married?
Ay=~Yes sir, he had three or four children,
Qe="At that time?
A, ~Yes sir,
Q,~=Was hisz wife dead?
A.,~~7es sir,



Q.~~Had no living wife?
As~=N0 slr, wife died at Colbert,
JUDGE FOOTE:
Qs=-Did you leave that man Poits, because you were afraid
that he might do you bodily hamm?
A,~~=Yes sir, I was afravd to live with him,
Witness excused,
¥r, Browm: I
If the Court please, like to introduce a certificate
from the commission t0 the Pive Civilized Tribes, showing
that John T, Potts, is on the roll ss a Chickesaw, end ask
to have the same marked Exhibit ¢, NMarked Hxhibit C¥,
‘ ROBERT POTTS, being called az mimmxx witness
in his own behall, after belrg first duly sworn, tesii-
fled as Tollows:
. DIRNCT EXAMINATION,
¥r, Brown:
Qu=="hat is vour name?
A.~=Robert Potits,
Q,=~~What is your sge?
A~=Twentyv=three years,
Q. Are you the son of Sarah Jane Reynolds?
A,~~Yen sir,
Q.= applicent in this case”
A.,~=Yes oir,
Q.=~¥herd do you reside?
A.~~Adelia, I, 7.
R.~-¥here have yvou resided sll your life?
A.~-thoctaw end Chickasaw Nationas,
Q.=-Are you the son o John Tayler Pottis?
Ays~~Yes sir,
Q,."?ou married or single?
A~=Single

%




Q.~=With whom do you live at this time?

A,~~Ny mother,

Q.--Did you make application to the Commission %0 the Five
¢y ilized Tribes in ninet-six tc be enrolled as & mem-
ber of the Chickassw tribe of Indians?

A~~Ves sir,

Q.,~=Were you enrolled by them?

A,~~Ves sir,

CROSS=-FEX R INATION,
¥r, Cornish,

Qe~=Where were yoi born, where was your mother living when
you were born?

A.~=In the Territorvy I suppose,

0,~~vour father is living no-?

A,~=Yen sir,

Q,~~Have you ever had any talk with your father ?

A~=N0O sgir,

Q.~-Has he ever recognized you as his son and talked with you
a8 his son? b
A== sir, not that T know anvthing ebout,
Q.,=~vou don't know him at &11% : AR
A,~=Yo mir, ‘
witness excused,
¥r, Brown: :
The onlv thing T desire to say is that we had & siub-
zmxwor posnae issued for Mr, Potts, Joe Potts, had a
marghall to serve a subpoenae upon him, @d here is &
lette r maying that he would be here, He iz & man of un=~
questioned charscter, If he is here we would like to
introduce him, Tn other words like to have his evidence,
¥r, Tomish:
suppose we just have the Court meke an order for the



further hearing of this case on the 30th, we wish to take
the testimony of her husband, 7If there is any evidence
on behalf of the Nations it will be taken on that date.
¥r, Brown:
If he is kere this afternoon, I want to take his evi~
dence, and if not that is satlscftory,
JUDGE POOTE: :
We can take his testimony between now and the 30th,
SARAH JANE REVNOLDS, recalled,
JUDGE FOOTE:
Q.~~Know whether this men paid eny money for the license?
A,~~No sir,
Q.,~-Don't know snything sbout that?
Ay=~NoO ajir.
JUDGR WRAVER:
Q.~~How long alter you were married was your child born?
Ae==Fight months, eight months sfter we xwxpx seperated,
JUDGE FOOTR:
Qe==You lived with him five weeks?
A:..""Yeﬂ sir.
Q.==Child was born in a 1ittle over nine months®

A,~=Yas sk ,
JIDGRE ADE'S: _
Imless they offer some testimony vou have proven
& case,

¥r, Comish:

we will ask t0 have the case re-set for the 30th,
¥r, Ba nw:

That will suit me,

R



In the Choctew and Chickasaw Ci tizenship Court s sitting at
Tighomingo, in the Southern District of the Indian Territery,
June Term, 1904,

Barah Jane Reynolds, et al.,
Viie : Nos 106,
Choctew and Chickasaw Nations,

DECREE OF COURT,

On this 30th day of June, 1904, this cause coming on
for final decision, the same having heretofore been mbmitted
wpon the law and the evidence, and the Court belng well and
sufficiently advised in the premises, doth find that the
plaintiffy Barah Jane Reynolds, is entitled to be decmed =
citigen by intermarrisge of the Chickasew Nation, and to onrollment

as such, and %o all the rights, pﬁﬁxmu and immmnities, persons
al to herself, wich flow therefrom; mnd that the plaintify,
Robert Potts, is entitled to be declared a eitizen by blosd of

the Chickasaw Hation, snd to enrellment as sueh, and to all the
rights, privileges and irsunities flowing therefrom; and the
Court doth further find that it has no Jurisdiction of the
petitioners, Mary T, R@ynolds, Charles €. Reynolds, Auna Laura
Reynolds, and 8, D« Rynolds,

IT I8 THERUFORE ORDERED, ADIUDG
'm etition of the plaintiffs, Sarah Jane Reynolde and Robert Potta,
be granted, and that the plaintiff, Barah Jane Reynolds, be
deemed a citizen by intermarriage of the Chickasaw Natlion, and
entitled to enroliment as such citisen, and entitled to all the
rights, privileges and imminities, personal to herself, flowing
therefrom; and that the plaintiff, Robert Potts, be declarsd

(1)




a citizen by blood of the Chickasaw Nation, and entitled to em~
rollment as such citizen, and entitled to all the rights,
privileges and immunities flowing therefrom: and as to the
plaintiffs, Mary E. Reynodds, Charles S, Reynolds, Anna Laura
Reynolds, and 8. B, Reynolds, the Court having no jurisdietion,
their petition is diemissed,

PP PPOROGIOIEIRIIOIEEOISEOEIIOIOLOIEOIOIOIODENGGS

Chief Judge.

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

Associate Judge.

PO OGO PO ENODEIBLEIEOOIDOIBRO NG EORTEED

Asgociate Judge.
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Jane Reynolds
Court Ko. 49~

vs A
Dawes No. 76

Chickasaw YNation.

Notice of appeal by the Chickasaw lation was issued by the
Clerk of the Court Jan. 4, 1897,

Original application and other papers were received from the
Nawes Commission and filed in the Clerk's office ¥eb. 3, 1897,

There are no papers in the case, howevér, in the Clerk's
office at the present time. The copy of original application to
the Dawes Commission filed with the authorities of the Chickasaw
Natien in 1896 ghoweg that Jane Reynolds, admitted by the Dawes
Commission, was the only applican®t in the case.

The case has not heen disposed of hy the Court and the last

entry on the record, under date of May 10, 1898, is "Continued®,

i



In the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, sitiing at
Tishomingo, in the Southern District of the Indian Territory,

June Term, 1904,

Sarah J. Reynolds, et al.,
VS No. 105.
Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations,
DECREE OF COURT,

On this 30th day of June, 1904, this cause coming on
for fRikmxk decision, the same having heretofore been submitted
upon the law and the evidence, and the Court being well and
sufficiently advised in the premises, doth find that the
plaintiff, Sarsh Jane Reynolds, is entitled to be deemed a
citizen by intermarriage of the Chickasaw Nation, and to
enrollment as such, and to all the rights, privileges and
immunities, personal to herself, which flow therefrom; and
that the plaintiff, Robert Potts, is entitled to be declared
a citizen by blood of the Chickasaw Nation, and to enrollment as
such, and to all the rights; privileges and immunities flowing
therefrom.

IT I8 THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
petition of thedplaintiffs Sarah Jane Reynolds and Robert Potts,
be granted, and that the plaintiff, Sarah Jane Reynolds, be
deemed a citizen by intermarriagefof the Chickasaw Nation, and
entitled to enrollment as such citizen, and entitled to all the
rights, privileges and immunities, personal to herself, which
flow therefrom; and that the plaintiff, Robert Potts, be declared
a citizen by blood of the Chickasaw Nation, and entitled to
enroliment as such citizen, and entitled to all the rights,
privileges and immunities flowing therefrom; and the petition

(1)



of the other parties mentioned therein is not paessed upon in thisg

decree,

P P0G DL OO BE VY@ DB SNSRI D e e e

shief Judge.

L B R B A R S B AR B B B B BB O B AR B AR BN O BN AR AR B R 4

Associate Judge.

LI B B I R B B I O BCE B B B BT B B N BN B BE BRI IR B AR R R

Associate Judge,



of the other parties mentioned therein is not passed upon in this

decree,

(R R R R A R R R R R R R R R R R

Chief Judge.

R R R R R S R R R R R S

Associate Judge.

PERCPTIINOVIVIERNG T IEPIR LI ENE NIRRT DSBS

Associate Judge,
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In the Choctaw afdd Chickasaw Citizenship court sitting at
South MeAlester, Indian merritory.

Sarah Jane Reynolds et al, Petit ioners
= -
Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations, defendants.

Your petitioners carah Jane Reynolds, Rober t Potts
Mary E Reynolds, Charles " ,Reynolds, Anna Taursa Reynolds, and S.D.
Reynolds, state that under the Act of Juﬁe the 10th 1896, they
duly filed their apnlication for citizenship before the ¢ ~»mission
to the Wive Civilized Trihes, that said epplication was heard
and acted upon by said Commission and that your appliant Ssralh
Jaao Reynolds was admitted by said Commission as a citizen of the
Clilckesaw Tribhe of Indians hy intermarriage, and Robert Potts
her son, by Jokn Potts, a Chickasaw Indian hy hlood was 8l=o ad
mitted, and the other petitioners haéain rejected; that there
2 fter said case was avpealed to the United States Court for
the Southern Di strict of the Indian Tsrritory, of which
appeal your petitioner never had any notice, and never
knew that said case was pending in the United States Court, but
had accepted said judgment of the Comission in 1896, and did not
know that thesame 'a d heen appealed from, until they appeared
heforesaid Commission several years later for enrollment,

Your petitioner Sarah Jene Reynolds says that she was
legally married to John T Potts, accord ng to the laws of the
Chickasew Nation, at Colbert, Indian Territory, in July 1880; thet
there was horn to her mmm and John Potts, one child, nobert Potts,

petit ioners
That the other ckxkdxmm hersin are children of your peti-

of your petitioner,



Sarahh Jane Reynolds, born to her by her second hushand,

Reynolds,
Your petitioners say that ths judgment of the United

States Court denyving citizenship to Sarah Jame Reynolds and
Rohe=rt Potts, was erronsous and without any knowledge to them,
and theat said Judoment is now of no binding force and effect
agaimmt your petitioners; that saild case iz sivled upon the docket
of the United States court for the Southern District of the
Indian Territory, at Afdmoro, Sarah Jane Reynolds et al
ve the Chickasaw wation, No, 47,

WHEREFORE, Your petitioners, Sarah Jane Reynolds, Robert
Pottse, ;ary ¥.Reynolds, Charles S,Reynolds, Anna Leurs Reynolds,
and S5,D.,Reynold s, pray that the Clerk of this Court make an order
directing the Clerk of the Unit ed States Court for the Sonthern
District of the Indian Territory, at Ardmore, to transfer and
certify all papsrs, records, and proceedings in said csse Nn, 47
Sarah Jane Reynolds 8t al, aga ainst the Chickesaw wation, to this
court, and that they have a trial of said case 22 it should habve
been tried originelly, and that the Choctaw and Chickasaw
wations be summoned to answer herein, and for 2l)l other proper relis
relief to which they may he entitled,

Thompson & Brown,
Attorneys for patitioners

Sarall Jane Revnolds haing dnlv sworn on nath savs that the
facts set forth in the above ani foregoing petition are

true and correct.

Suhscribed and swornm to hafore me this day of »werch 1903,

(- et i

Notary Publie




Indian merritory

Chickssaw Nation,

On this day personally apmsred hefore me the
undersigned authority J,.R.#illisms who, heirnys hv me duly
sworn, on oath states that he i 19 years of age, of sound
mind and stenogrepher for mhompson & Rrown K that he did
on the 12th day of March 1903 address to Mensfield, MeMurray &
Cornish, attorneys for the Choctaw and Chickasaw Vations, » copy
of the foregoing petition of Ssrah Jane Revnolds apgainst the
Choctaw and Chickasaw Netions, and that he seadled said
lettar, containing said copy, so addressad, and properly
stamned same and rlaced it in the noe toffice at Ard.mg‘rg, Indien
Tervritoru, on the said 18th  day of March, 1903.

J.E,Williams,

Suhsceribed and s worn to before ms this 12th day of March 1903,

E.RMemon,

Notarv Publie,

(SRAT.)



SUMMONS.

United States of America,

Indian Territory, oy

Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court.

The Premdent of the United States of Amerlca,

" Tp the United States Marshal for the Indian Territory, Northern District
QR»NEETING:

You are herebv Commanded to Summons Grecn McCurtain, Prmupal thef of

the Choctaw thlon to dnswer on behalf of said nation, in twentv days after the service ()f thls

summonq upon hlm as Pl‘][]C]de Chief -of said Nation a gomplamt in Equity filed dgdm%t the

Choctdv» and Chickasaw nation-in the Chnctaw and Chickasaw CltIZemhlp Court, 1n the Indlan 'ler~

E
bl

rfitory, at ... » (,7
’
§ ¥ / 4

and warn him that upon his failure as said Principal Chief to answer on behalf of said nation, the

complaint will be taken for confessed, and you will make return of the summons instanter;

And you are further commanded to notify said Green McCurtain Principal Chief aforesaid,

that the papers, files and proceedings in the case ot *= f}¢/ . 2 Mé—-«

=

File No. /-/ ,7 ........................ in the District Court for the S=#x4 A ek hr = District of the

Indian Territory, has been transferred to the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, and that
y
the certificate of the clerk of said court for said [ ) /“""-‘"“ & . District, Indian Territory,

has been attached thereto.

WITNESS the Honorable Spencer B. Adams, Chief Judge,
“Walter L. Weaver and Henry S. Foote, Associate
Judges, and the Seal thereof, at South MLAles‘ter,

/} (

"Indian Territory, aforesaid, this ...~ il :

day of March A. D., 1903.

i
|

4
A Attt 7J /wﬂ»»‘ AA . Clerk

.............................................................................................................



MARSHAL’S RETURN

United States of America, }
Indian Territory, ‘F
___________________________________ .. DISTRICT. J
L deleivgd this summons this ...l OF G,
N S ) e m. and served same by copy, as follows:
Petsonaily: oG reen NIcE antainieal o b i st ot A Bl b st e i i
ARRTS ST ARt e e GALO BT e m.
By _.Deputy
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SUMMONS.

United States of America,

Indian Territory, {

Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court.

The President of the United States of America,

i : "
Ta the United States Marshal for the Indian Territory, Southern District,

-

GREETING:

You are hereby Commanded to Summons' P. S. Moseley, Governor of
t”:he Chickasaw Nation, to answer on behalf of said nation, in twenty davs after the service of this
summons upon him, as Governor of said Nation a complaint in Equity filed against the

Choctaw and‘Chickasaw nation in the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, 1n the Indian Ter-

and warn him that upon his failure as said Governor to answer on bzhalf of said nation, the

ritorv, at WAL DZ 2T

complaint will be taken for confessed, and you will make return of the summons instanter;

And you are further commanded to notify said P. S. Moseley Governor aforesaid,

(
, o 7 gl
that the papers, files and proceedings in the case ot 7"7/" L LA et e 77//&&—-

File No. f"';- in the District Court for the District of the

Indian Territory, has been transferred to the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court, and that

has been attached thereto.

WITNESS the Honorable Spencer B. Adams, Chief Judge,
Walter L. Weaver and Henry S. Foote, Associate
Judges, and the Seal thereof, at South McAlester,

Indian Territory, aforesaid, this i AL e

day of March A. D., 1903.
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MARSHAL’S RETURN.

United States of America, ]
Indian Territory, l‘r
DISTRICT. J

I received this summons this ... ot iaro) o eteedle B A, D.. 1903,
O et Mo’ cldek ... m. and served same by copy, as follows:
Refsonaly et Po S, Moseley, B . oonifissmmimmpmmms el o Bise M N Indian Territory,
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Sarah Jane Rsynolds at al.
Court No, 47

vs
Dawes No, 2758

Chickasaw Nation.

Notice of appeal hy the Chickasaw Nation was issued by the
Clerk of the Court Jan. 4, 1897.

Original application and other papers were received from the

Dawes Commission and filed in the Clerk's office Peb. 3, 1897,

Sarah Jane Reynélds and her son, Robert Potts, admitted %o
citizenship by the Dawes Commission were rejected by the Court, a
default judgmen'’ against them being entered of record HMarch 9,1898.

This casé has not been appealed to the United States Supreme

o bt ™ BleAsac.

Court.

g‘ngm,g ty “Fee -




" To the Ghickasaw Nation, *

In the Uaited States Court at Ardnore for the Southern District

of the Indian Territory,

b i

e

Chiokasaw Watlion
Plaintife -

No. 47, Ve, —

garah Jahe Revholds and 4
Robt, Potts,
i Defendants 4

¥od 0y

e T
RN R T I e G AT M
o

“

ne above named plaintiff, and Mansfield,
Meibirray and Cornish, attornsys of record for the abobe nlaintif:
You are hereby nétified that the denositions of witnesses Lo be read

as awidence on the hearing of the above entitled cause, will be faken
/

i
~

at the Post 0ffice in the town of Willis, Chickasaw Nation, in the Southern
District of the Indian Territory, on the 31lst-dal of March A,D.1800
batween the hours of '8 o'slock in the forenocon and 6 o'clock in Lhe

P 5 D . i i
afternoon, and 17 the faking of said depositions he not, Oomple%é@ -~
that day the sage will be eontinued Crom day 4o day at the same nlace
and between ihe sane hours until completed,
witness our hands this the 26th day of Harsh 1900,
de Gs Ralls,

Browne & Mason,

Attorneys Tor delendants,
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INTEX,

Registry receipt

Affidavit o M, M. Lindly
-Application to Commission
Angwer of Chickasaw Nation
larriage License

Marriage certificate
Affidavit of i. D, Price

Affidavit of Susan Price

i

Affidavit of Sarah J, Reynolds

Letter of J, B, Potts to "Dear Sallie"
Letter of "Mamie" to lrs, Sallie Potts
Judgment of Commission

Judgmant of Commisssion

Judgment of U, S, Court

Judgment of U, S, Court
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Registry peceipt
Postoffice at Sonth McAlester, Tnd,Ter,
Registered letter No.25 Rec'd Sept.7,1896,
of M.M,Tindly addressed to P.S,Moseley Wapsnucks, I, T,

M,A,Potter, P,M, B

United States of America
Indian Territory
Centrdl Distriet,
M. M.,Lindley, bein g duly s=~orn states that he s this day for-
warded hy registered mail evidenced hy the registry receipt of
M.A.Potter, Postmaster at South Mc+lester, Tndian Territory to
P,S.Moseley nrincipal Chief Chickasaw Nation, & true and perfect.
copy of the arplicatio n for admittance and enroliment by the
Dawes Jomm ssion to citizenshin in the saild Chickesaw Nation of Ind
Ter.
Petition '
Affidavits of

P.D.Price,

Susan nrice,

Sarai Jane Rem olds,

Tetter of J,B.Potts,

Marriage licensea and certificate

Applicant (yary Jane Revnolds,
and of all +hs svidence nf affidavits, denositions and recorded
evidence, snd of all panpers &c hiereto attached
to he used in support of smaid petition,

M.M.Tindley,
Attorney for petitioner

S.P.McTaughlin,

Suhscerined and sworn to hefore me this 7 day of Sept,, 1896
oterv Publie 8

TN Wogter
L



APPLICATION FOR WNROTLTLMENT
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES COMMISSION TO THE FIVR CIVITLIZFD TRIRES
OF INDIANS,
SARAH JANF REYNOTDS RET AL
PETIT IONER
Vs APPLICATION WOR ADMITTANCE AND FNROT.T,
MENT

CHICXASAW NATION INDIAN TRRRITORY
RESPONDENT

TO THE ABOVE MENTIONED HONORART.E COMMISSION:
Your petitioner Sarah Jane Reynolds states that John T,
Potts was & Chickesaw Tndizn dy hlood, was duly recognized by
the proper authorities as such in the @ icesaw Nation, and
enjoyed all the rights privilsges bensfits snd immmities
of otihaer Chickasaw Indians by blood in the zaid Nation or Tribhe
of Indians and thet the name o the said John T,Potts appesrs
o~ should appear upon the anthenticated rolls of the spid yation
Indisns at present,
Taat petitioner was legally m rried to said John T,Potts
in Colbert rtndian merritorv in July 1880: that there
was born of said union one child pohart Potis,,
That vour petitioner was compelled to leave s2id Pottis
on agcount of crual ftreatment snd was legally divirced
in the Tndian Court end was legal 1v marriad to Samuel D,Revnolds
November 23 1885; that sie s never resided ontside the
Indian merritary since her m rriage toz aid Potts and thet she togs
gether with her present hushsnd S,D.,Reynolds has slways enioyed
the privileges of the saild Chiclessw Indians sand khas alwys owned
land and now owns & home in the Choctaw yation near MeAlaster,
That under the COnstitnution laws useces ané cunstoms of the =aiad
Caickasaw Nation and Trihe of Tndians and the laws of the

Unit ed States and treaties with =a2id Indlare nv vour =aid retitiemer
9



!

is entitled to he 2dnitted #néd envrolled as a citizen 2vd memher of
said Ckickasaw Tribe of Tndians Tn ¥ndian mearritory and entit)led
to all the rights privileges hanefits and snnuities of other
Caickasaw Tndians.

That there are now living legal descendants of vour said
petitioner four persons as follows towit: pobert Potts, 2 son
»nd si xteen yearsof age '
:iry H.Reynolds a gxmxxkxxxxmsxxx son and seven years of sge;
Charles S,Reynolds a son and five years of age;

Anne, Taura Reynolds a daughter and two years of sge;
S.D,Reynnlds a hushh nd and thirty eight years of sge
Sarah J.Reynolds anplicant and thirty five vears of age,
Sald descendants towit Rohert Potts, ;lrion E.,Reynolds, Cherles
S,Reynnlds Anna Taura Reynolds together with Samle D,Reynolds
hor hushand snd _ ==~ == 000 he enrnlled and scmitted
to all the rights henefits privileges of = tribe of Tndisns
in Indian .erritory and your petitioners will ever pray,
MM Tindley,
Attorney for petitioners,
The saforsaamed petitioner Sarsh J Revnolds spys that the
tmt tlhe statement: zet forth in the ahove and foregoing petition
avra true according to Rkis hest knowle dce information and helief
S.JReynolds
petitioner,
Subscribed and sworn to hefore me this 25 day of July, 1896
Joe Hillman Notarv Publ b

(S®AT)
10



BEFORE THE HONORABLRE COMMISSION TO THR WIVE CIVILIZED TRIEES

In the mtter of the application for enrollment
& the Chickasaw Nation of Sarah Jane

Revnolds et al,

Comes now the Chickasaw yation by its attorneve and without
walving any exceptions heretofore talten to the app lication filed
herein, and without consenting to but denying the jurisdiction of
this Honorable Gommission to pass upon & question of citizenship
in the Chickasaw Nxikwxx Tribe of Indians, present this, its answer
to said application, and respectfilly represents:

FIRST: The Chicksesaw watlon denies that any of the
applicants herein are members of the Chickasaw Tribe of Indians
by blood, or otherwise, danies that any of them have aver enjoyed
the rights and privileges accorded to Chickesew Indians, and denies
that they are entitled to any of said rights or privilogo: or
to citizenship among said Tribe of Indians,

WHUREFORE, These premises considered, the Chickasaw
Nation prays this Jonomble Commission to reject the applik ation of
the plaintiffs for enrollment among the Chickasaw Tribe of
Indians and will ever pray etec.

THE CHICKASAW NATION

By its attorneys



-

Nrickasaw Nation

Panola o unty

To Any Ordained or licened Minister of the Rospel hkaving
tae care of Soles or Judge of the Chickasaw Nation, these are to
authorize you t to solemnize the rites ~f of matrimony
hetween Mr,John ¥ Potts, and Mrs,.S,.J.Lee, hy nniting them in
marriage in conformanece to th laws of the Chickasaw Nation
and a dne‘veturn make of these liecens to Clerk of the County Court
of panola (County with,your’endprsement thequn.
Given under my hand and afficial signature on thin 23rd day of
July A.D,lB&O. H.7 Murry Judge and Co and Probhate court

P.C.C.N,
I do hereby certify that the ahove is a true and correct copy
of the original as ahove shown, @iven under rm hand and
official signature this 14th day of August 18&Q
J HLGodfreyv

Clerk P.C.G.N.

I herehy certify that the ahove 1is a true and correct eopy of e
marriage eertificate of John ¥ Potts and S8,7,lee
Given under my m nd and seal of office this the 14 day o
of August , 1896
J.T..Harper clerk, P,C,C,N,

(S®AT)

1, H. ¥ Murry County Judge of Panola County, C,N, by virtue of
the an thority vested in me hw law and a license for mrriage
granted by the Judge of said panola county Chickasaw Nation, did
on the 23rd day of July 1880 unite in marriage John F,Potts

and Mrs,S.J.Tee,

H.¥.Murry Ttate County and Prohate
Judge of Panola Co.C,N,

11



J.D.Price of lawful age being duly seotn states that I am
rersonally acquainted with Mrs,Sarah J,.kmmxx Reynolds znd knew
her at the time she was m rried to John W,Potts a (hickassw
Indian and also know that thers wsw born of sais ma rriage a
child nohert Potts, now living,

My pes toffice addeess is Coalgate, I,7, and I am nnt
interested either directly or indirectly in the result of this
claim,

Dated at Coalgate, I.,7, this 31 st dey of
August 1896,
J. his X mark D,Price,

Witness
Vietor Bey Gus ,artin

Suhscribed and sworn to hefore me this 31 day of August 1896,

HT V Parry,
N P'

My Commiss ion exprs 20th Mch 18%9,

Susan Price of lawful age heing first duly sworn states: I
am well and personally adquainted with the applicant herein Sarai
J.Reynolds, and know her to he the party she represents I rself
to be towit: the former wife of a Chickasaw Indian hy the name
of John W,Potts, and know that she has a child born of said
uplon hy the name of éahert Potts, I am in no wey interested
in the result of this eclaim

My postoffice addesss 1is (Coalgate, 1.7, Dated at
Coalzate this 31 day of Augnst 1896,
Susan her x mark Price,
WitnessVietor Bey Gus Martin
Subserihed and sworn to hefore me this 31 day of Augnust 1896,

2,7,V,Perry N,P,

Seal My Com exprs 20 Mch 1899

12



Sarah J.Reynolds, the applicant herein being first duly
sworn states: My age is 31 years, T live at cAlester, 1.7,
That the letter hereto attached is one received by me in the
due comrse of mail from Joseph Potts, end his wife wannie and that
the said Joseph Potts is a hrother to my former hushand maylor
Potts, 80 often referred to in the said letter as Taylor, Affiant
further states that she has requested said Joseph Potts to make
an affidavit disclosing the facts of her identity as they arpear
from his letie r hereto atteched to this affiant; that he has
refused so to do

Sarah J.,Revnolds

Sworn and su hserihed to hefore me this 3rd day of September 1896

C.Jd.Watson,
Notary Publie
Central Distriet 1.7,
Commission expires September 24,1897,

(SEAT)
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Dear Sallie:
As Nannie is writing T will write you a few

lines, I have not much to write as ,annie Jas written yvou
about all, You spoke some thing about a right. You have just the
same right as an Ind ian, Tf T could see yvou 7 could tell vou a
_great deal that T cant write lmndy, so if you will direct me to
whe re you are at 1 will stop and see you as 1 will be ms sing up
through thar soon, T will close hoping to hear from vous soon/
Yours truly

J.B.Potts

July 12,1885,
Colbert Station, Indian ~erritory,
yrs,Sallie Potts
Dear cisterinlaw:

I take pleasure in answering the letter
that wyou written to us all, I was gladder to read a letter
from you than I would lave from my own sister, Sallie you seem to
he in 'great distress, Why did you not state who you were
stayirng with or where and Jo would have come imme diately to see yo
you, 7T written to you last fall to know if you would not come
and live with us but never got an answer, Sallie T would like to
see you and your liéttle hoy, You must write as soon as you get
this and let me know where yvou are staving at and Joe will come
and see you and if you are not mrried and wish to come here, state
the fact. Sallie + will write soome to you for Mrs.Collins,
for she is in poor health and perhaps will not feel like writing.
0ld Auntie is still alive and is ahout the same she was wheh  you
weare here, The girls are all at home and none merried, They
o ve one more child, a little boy four years old They was glad
to hear from you, Sallie Taylor is m rried and has a boy two

years old and is getting along very poorly, -Me has the most
selfish or T should have said hateful woman in the U.,S,

14



AN

She treats Mandy like a dog, raura fares some hetter
The children never gets to come to see us only when we go to see
them, Wwe go to see them now and then hut thny'dont g0 nowhere
Mollie, that's tTaylnr's:wii’e, s ays they are too poor; Joe sent for
Taylor to come today and if he comes I wi 11l show him your
letter, I cant tell what he will have to saya hout it, probably
he will not read it atall, Well) T will tell youa bout our own
little family which consists of four, we have two little girls,
one four years 6 the other seven months 0ld, We are not living at
the old place but hought a place two miles north of the 0ld place
whnich is ahout one mile to Taylor's place, 7e moved here last
winter; have put up a new house hut have not got it finished, and
we will have a heautiful place hare whan we get evervvthing
fixed up, which T hope will he before many vears

We have the 0ld place rented out; have eniatrged the farm,
have got three famillies on it and a fine prospect for lois of
corn and eotton/ Taylor Jas slso sot a good crop and 1 hope he
will make some thing this year, Well', T will elose for Joe wants
to write some, Hoping to = ar from you soon, I remain as eve r

vours respectfully,
Mamie,
To the Honorahle the nawes
Commiss ion:
I reaspectfully invite your attention to the facts

set up in the affidavit of the applicant hereto attached stating
that her former hrotherinlaw John Potts, and sister of her said
former hushand Nannie, whose nare is yannie Collins, have hoth
refused to make affidavit to the fact of her former marriage to
their brother, The postoffice address of said witnesses is
colhert I,T and if the Honorable Commission consider that more
avidence is necessary we demand that they he suppoenased to appear

hefore said commission and give testimony in this case,.
Respe ctfully submitted,

15
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- DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

COMMISSION TO THRE FIVE CIVILIZED TRITES.

Vinita, Indisn Territory Nov.10,61896

76
Jane Reynolds, Filed Sept., 9 ,1896, answer filed
Jane neynolds admitted as an inter
married citizen
,G.G.Ran&uli, Denison

v : Texas

Chickasaw Nation,

I, HiM.Jacoway Jr Secretary do hereby certify
that the above and forogoing is a true and correct copy of
Chickasaw Record "C" page 14 of the COmmission to the Five Civil
ized Tribes. ‘
Given under my hand and official signature this the 28 day
of Jany 1897,

H.M.Jacoway Jr Secretary

Ry menry Stroup Act.



DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
COMMISSION [TO TEE FIVE CIVILIZED TRIBES
Port Smith, Ark, Wov,23,1896,

lds et 21, miled Sept.9,1896, answer filed

! /Z% 54 Sarah Jane Reynolds adnitted as an
éi intermarried citizen and nobert
- Potts her son as a sitizen by
blood;vSamuel Reynolds and her
/ children by Reynolds denied
‘ citizenship,

M.M,Lindlsy
So .McAlester, I,T,

.. A
é HM.Jacoway Jr Secretary do hereby certify thet the above

and foregoing is a trus and correct copy of Chickasaw Record

"C" page 48 of the Commission to the Five Civilized
Tribcs
Given under my hand and official signature this the
30 dsy of Jany 1897,
H,M.Jacoway Jr Secretsry

By Henry Stroup Act.
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Sarah _sne Reynolds et al,
Plaintifse

es JUDGEMent

Chickesaw Nation,
Defendant,

On this 9 day of ,march 1896, came on to be heard the
above cause upon the substituted pleadings and evidence
and the defendants appeared by their attorney snd announcad
ready for trial, but neither the pla intiffs nor their attorneys
appeared, but wholly made default, Whereupon it appesring to the
court that this appeal from the decision of the awes Commission
had bsen regularly taken; and after hearing the svidence and
being fully advised on tha whole cause, it is considered by the
court that the applicants herein should take nothing by their
sult, but that their application for enrollment in the Chéckasaw
Tribe of Indians should he denied.

IT IS, THERRWORE, ordered, adjudged and decreed

hy the court that the applicatién of the claimants herein to-
wit: Sarah Jane Reynolds, and her son Robert Potts, be denied,
and that they be r-fungd,citizonahih in the Chickasaw Nation
and that they take nothing by their suit,
It is further ordered adjudcred and decreed by the court that the
defe dant, the Chickasaw wation, do have and recover of and from
the said plaintiffs all)l their costs in this behslf expended
and incurred, for which execut ion may issus, and that this
judement be certified to the said Dawes Commission for thelr

obsarvance,

JUDGH,

£2



Sarah yane reynolds, et =l.
No, ¥ 47 Vs, Judgment, Southern Dist, jarch 9, 1898.

Chickasaw Nation, g

On this 9th day of March, 1898 cae on to be heard the
above cause upon the substituted pleadings and evidence and the
defeandant appeared by their attorney and announced redy for trial,
but neither the plaintiffs nor their attorneys appeared, but wholly
made defaul . :

Whereupon it appearing to the co rt that t hi appeal

from the decsion of the Dawes Cormission had been regularly taken

ot
oA
e

e
Tk

and after hearing th evidemce and being fully advised on the whole
cause it is consifred by the ourt that the applicants herein
should take nothing by their suit, butt hat their gpplication for
enrollment in the Chickasaw Tribe of Indians should he denied,

It is therefore ordered, adjudged and decreed by the court that the
application of the plaintiffs lerein, to=-wit:

Sarah Jane Reynolds, and her son Robert Potts, be denied,
and that they be re"used citizens Aip in the Chickasaw Nation, and
that t hey tale nothing by their su¥t., It is further ordered, adjudged
and dcreed by the comrt, that tle defendant, the Chickasaw ﬁation
do mve and recover f the said plaintiffs all their costs in this
behalf expended and incurred, for which exceution ma - issue, and tlat

this judgment e certified to the Dawes Commigsion for their observance.
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South McAlester, Indian Territory , June 22, 1903.

Sarah Jane Reynolds, et al,
ve. T. No., 105, gcouthern District No, 47
Chickasaw Nation,

LETTFR OF INSTRUCTIONS.

The office files of the papers in this
case are herewith delivered and you are direct ed to
make an investigation thereof along the lines indi-
cated in this letter and to return the sahe together
with your written report and exhibits attad ed thereto
at the earliest practicable date,

The parties included in the petition for
writ of error to the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship
Court ate saralh Jane Reynolds, Robert Potts, Mary E;
Reynolds, Charles S. Reynolds; Anna Laura Reynolds
and S. D. Reynolds. It appears that all of the
above named persons, under the Act of Congress
approved June 10, 1896 filed with the Commisd on
to the File Civilized Tribes a petition for admigsion
as citizens of the Chickasaw Nat ion under the title
of Sarah Jane Reynolds, et al vs, Chickasaw Nation,
Tle petition in this case alleges that the principal

anMl inant Qaralh Tone Rawmald. o white woman. was en /7



July, 1880 married to John T. Potts, an alleged
Chickasaw Indian by blood, by whom she had one son,
namely Robert O, Potts, who appears as one of the
applicants in this cause, That after the birth of
this child sarah Jane Reynélds was divorced from her
Chickasaw husband, and on November 23, 1885 was
married to Samuel D, Reynolds, a white man, and one
of the applicants herein, that by this second mar-
riage there was born three children, Mary E. Reynolds,
Charles S. Reynolds and Anna Laura Reynolds, who are
also parties applicant in the original petition.

This case appears upon the docket of the Dawes Com=-
mission as Chickasaw case number 275, and on Novenber
23, 1896 the Commission rendered a decision, which

is in words as follows: "Sarah Jane Reynolds admitted
as an intermarried citizen, and Robert Potts, her

son as a citizen by blood; Samuel Reynolds, and her
children by Reynolds denied citizenship"., From this
decision of the Cmmmission an appeal was taken by the
Chickagsaw Nyation to the United States Court for the
Southern District of the Indian Territory January 4,
1897 as to Sarah Jane Reynolds and Robert Potts. The
original application and papers in the case were filed
in the Clerks office for the Southern District én
February %i, 189%7. On March 9, 1898 a judgment was
rendered by the United States Court for the Southern
Pistrict of the Indian Territory reversing the decis-
ion of the Commission as to Sarah J; Reynolds and her

son Robert O. Potts, and denying and refusing their



petition for enrollment as citizens of the Chickasaw
Nation. It would therefor appear that the only two
persons in this case who would come within the juris-
diction of the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenghip
Gourt are Sarah Jane Reynolds and her son Robert
Pottsx on appeal from an adverse decision of the
United States Court for the Southern Digtrict of the
Indian Territory, The other persons petitione&ﬁin the
petition for writ of error according to this judgment
were newer before the United States Court, and the
judgment of the Dawes Cormmigsion under the act of
June 10, 1896 is apparently final as to these appli-
cants.

There is also found in the copiesof the
papers in this case a judgment of the Dawes Commisgion
in Chickasaw citizenship case number 76, entitled
Jane Reynolds vs. Chickasaw Nation. In this case
on November 10, 1896 the Commission render a judg-
ment as follows: "Jane Reynolds admitted as an
intermarried citizen". From this decision an appeal
was tédken by the Chickasaw Nation to the United
Court for the Southern District of the Indian Terri-
tory, and the original papers were apparently
transferred from the Commissi on and filedin the Clerks
office for the Southern District February 3, 1897,

It does not appear however that the original papers
in this case are on file in that office, nor has
this case ever been disposed of by that Court.

dockerl
The latest entry on the »reeord under date of March



10, 1898 is "continued".

You are directed to obtain from the
g sTalemen? of

Commission to the Five Civillzed Tribesﬂwho were the
parties applicant in the case of Jane Reynolds vs,
Chickasaw Nation, 1896 Chickasaw case number 76, and
also ascertain fréﬁ the Clerk of the United States
Court for the Southern District of the Indian Terri=-
tory if the case of Jane Reynolds vs. Chickasaw Na-

tion, citizenship docket number 49 has ever been dis-

posed of by that Court. .

In the case of Sarah Jane Reynolds, et al.
before the Citizenship Court, the question is appar-
ently one of law, and you will take necessary steps
to ascertain the following facts in the case:

FIRST: Was John T, Potts a Chickasaw Indian
by blood. o

SEC OND: Waskthe marrisge of John T, Potts and
Saralh Jane Reynolds of July 1880 in accordance
with the tribal laws of the Chickasaw Nation.

THIRD: The cause of the seperation and di-
vorce of John T; Potts and the applicant carah Jane
Reynolds. oA
FOURTH: Who applied for and obtain the divorce

i £33
§ e o

referred to, Ot i



It is more than probable that the Chickasaw
Indian referred to as JohN., T, Potts is now living
as the record would indicate that since his marriage
and seperation with the applicant Sarah Jane Reynolds
he has remarrded. You will procure from this man
Potts an affidwit relative to his marriage to the
applicant Sarah ‘:J-ane Reynolds, whether such marriage
wag in accordance with the laws of the Chickasaw
Nation; how long they lived together, and the cause
for the seperation and #ivorce.

Yours very truly,
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% s Indian Territory,
Chicltagaw WNation.

On this day personally appeared before we, the undersigned suthority

J. E. Willisms, who, being by nme duly sworn, on oath stantes that he

iz I9tyears of ame, of sound mind and stenogravher for Thowmpson &
Mareh,
% Brownj that he did, on the I2th day of ¥emaomxx 1903, address to
Mansfield, McMurray & Cornish, attorneys for the Choctaw and Chickasaw

Nations,; a copy of the foregoing petition of Sarah Jane'ﬂoynnlds,

aiainst the Choetaw and Chicknsaw Wations, and thot he sealed said

g
i
|
|

- & & > . - -
letter, containing said copy, so addressed, snd properly strmed same

and placed it in the post ofice 2t Ardmore,

L4

Indian Territory, on

said I2th day of liarch, I903.

Subseribed and sworn to before me this I2th day of HMareh, I903.

- HNotary Publie.
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